ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 31, 2005
8:02 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative JimElKkins
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Jay Ranras
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

MVEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Berta Gardner
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 214
"An Act relating to anatomical gifts and the anatom cal gift
donor registry program”

- MOVED HB 214 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 191

"An Act relating to defined contribution systens for nenbers of
the teachers' retirenment system and the public enployees’
retirement system and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 170

"An Act relating to the qualifications of public nenbers of the
Public Enployees’ Retirement Board and the Alaska Teachers
Retirement Board.™

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 177
"An Act relating to enployee and enployer contributions to the
teachers' retirenment system and the public enployees' retirenent
system and providing for an effective date.™

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2005



HOUSE Bl LL NO. 238

"An Act relating to contribution rates for enployers and nenbers
in the defined benefit plans of the teachers' retirenment system
and the public enployees' retirement system and to the ad-hoc
post-retirenment pension adjustnent in the teachers' retirenment
system requiring insurance plans provided to nenbers of the
teachers' retirenment system the judicial retirenment system the
public enployees' retirement system and the forner elected
public officials retirenment system to provide a list of
preferred drugs; relating to defined contribution plans for
menbers of the teachers' retirenent system and the public
enpl oyees' retirement system and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 214

SHORT TITLE: ANATOM CAL G FTS & REG STRY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MCGUI RE

03/ 09/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 09/ 05 (H) STA, HES

03/ 31/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 191

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C EMPLOYEE/ TEACHER RETI REMENT
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

03/ 02/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 02/ 05 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 22/ 05 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 22/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 05 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 29/ 05 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 29/ 05 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 31/ 05 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 170
SHORT TI TLE: PUB EMPLOYEES/ TEACHERS RETI REVENT BOARDS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

02/ 23/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 23/ 05 (H STA, FIN

03/ 22/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 22/ 05 (H Heard & Hel d

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 31, 2005



03/ 22/ 05 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 29/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 29/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 29/ 05 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 31/ 05 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 177
SHORT TI TLE: STATE EMPLOYEE RETI REMENT CONTRI BUTI ONS
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

02/ 25/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 25/ 05 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 22/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 22/ 05 (H Heard & Held

03/ 22/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 29/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 29/ 05 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 31/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 238
SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C EMPLOYEE/ TEACHER RETI REMENT
SPONSCR(s) : STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 30/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 30/ 05 (H STA, FIN
03/ 31/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE LESI L McGU RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 214, as sponsor.

KERRY JARRELL, Assistant Superi ntendent

Bering Strait School District

Unal akl eet, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the school district
during the hearing on HB 191.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 191.

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff
to Representative Mke Kelly

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 31, 2005



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented Version | to HB 191 on behal f of
Representative Kelly, sponsor.

MELANI E M LLHORN, Director

D vision of Retirenent & Benefits

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered a brief summary of the Alternative
1 and 2 nedical plans, during the hearing on HB 191.

RI CHARD SCLIE, SR, Ph.D., Menber

Teachers' Retirement System Board

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions during the
hearing on HB 191.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:02:49 AM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Elkins, Lynn, Ranras, and Seaton were present at the cal
to order. Representative Gruenberg arrived as the neeting was

i n progress.

HB 214- ANATOM CAL G FTS

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 214, "An Act relating to anatom cal gifts and the
anatom cal gift donor registry program”

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 8:03:43 AMto 8:03:54 AM

8. 03: 57 AM

REPRESENTATIVE LESIL MQGJRE, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 214, explained that the bill would nake a
technical correction to a broader bill that |ast year's House
State Affairs Standing Commttee passed, which created an
anatomcal gift registry in Al aska. She stated for the record
that the registry has been successful. The proposed | egislation
woul d expand the definitions in last year's bill. She said that
unwittingly a definition was adopted which left out "our only
organ and tissue bank here in the state of Al aska." The bill

woul d al so clear up sone inconsistencies between federal rulings
and state | aws.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2005



8:05:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN enphasized his support of the bill. He
produced his driver's |icense, which shows that he is an organ
donor. He stated his concern that [there be] no organ donations
from any aborted fetuses or from any early induction fetuses
with abnormalities inconpatible with life. He said he has been
told by Representative MQire's staff that there may be a

federal law that addresses that. He said, "I have sone
information that my be at odds with that, but this is not
sonething that | want to take ... the tine [to address
currently].” He restated his support of the bill and said he
woul d probably fornulate an anmendnent. He added, "And we can

address this during the interim between this commttee and the
next commttee of referral.”

8:07:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO directed attention to page 2, line 26, and
noted that the effort had been made to change "[MJST]" to
"shall". He asked if there is a legal or grammatical definition

that is different for each of those words.
8:08: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE responded, "It's a drafting choice.” She
added that it doesn't seemlike much of a difference to her, but
in many of the legislative bills that have passed through the
House Judiciary Standing Conmttee, the nobve has been to change
the word to "shall".

8:08:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO directed attention to page 3, |ine 15,
whi ch provides the definition of "technician". He said he is
happy to see the definition in the bill. He offered further
detail s.

8:09:17 AM

REPRESENTATIVE MGURE stated for the record that she
appreci ated Representative Gatto's comments |ast year [that |ead
to the definition]. She added, "In fact, the definition was too
restrictive.”

8:09:34 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS enphasized that this is about organ
donors, not fetuses.

8:10:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN responded that it's a matter of definitions.
8. 10: 56 AM

CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

8:11:04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report HB 214 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objections, HB 214 was reported out of
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

HB 191- PUBLI C EMPLOYEE/ TEACHER RETI REMENT

HB 238- PUBLI C EMPLOYEE/ TEACHER RETI REMENT

HB 177- STATE EMPLOYEE RETI REMENT CONTRI BUTI ONS
HB 170- PUB EMPLOYEES/ TEACHERS RETI REMENT BOARDS

8:11:39 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HB
191. [ Although the chair did not officially announce that HB
170, HB 177, and HB 238 were before the committee, they were
di scussed in conjunction with HB 191. See the conmttee
calendar for bill titles.]

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 8:11:57 AMto 8:12:28 AM

8:12: 57 AM

KERRY JARRELL, Assistant Superintendent, Bering Strait School
District, testifying on behalf of the school district, told the
commttee that he is also a certified public accountant (CPA
and, as of two weeks prior, an appointee to the Teachers'
Retirement System (TRS) Board. He read his testinony as follows
[original punctuation provided with sonme fornmat changes]:

Rhetoric in the press has described the current
condition of the retirement systens as the “PERS/ TRS
mel t down” . The conbined conditions have been
characterized in the SB141 Wite Paper as a “perfect

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2005



stormi. It is inportant to understand that, contrary
to the recent rhetoric, the factors that led us to
this point were not inmrediate, not rapidly devel oping,
and do not represent a neltdown. | am not suggesting
that the issues are not real, but | am suggesting that
they need to be viewed in their proper context.

Retirement systens are |ike supertankers that respond
slowy to environnental <conditions and corrective
actions. The seeds of the problens as well as the
successes of the plans were planted and nourished over
the past twenty-five years. \Wen critics speak of the
funding “crises” or “neltdown” of today, they are
actually |l ooking twenty-five years into the future and

projecting what curulatively wll occur over that
peri od. Just as actuaries may have erred on many
projections over the past quarter of a century,
current actuarial estimtes wll no doubt mss the
mark over the next quarter of a century. M nor

changes in assunptions can cause enornmous changes in
the funding status of the plans. Consider that a 2%
change up or down in the estimate of the rate of
gromh of health care wuld change the unfunded
liability of the plans by over a billion dollars.

Actuaries wll be the first to admt that their
projections are far from an exact science. It is
evident today that many of the assunptions throughout
the 1990's were incorrect. Health care costs were
growng nmuch faster than we realized for nearly a
decade before actuarial assunptions were revised
around 2002. The retirenent plans that appeared fully
funded in the late 1990's were obviously under funded.
Correcting those assunptions in 2002 resulted Iin a
mul ti-year adjustnent that startled everyone. Those
adjustnents did not reveal m smanagenent of the assets
by the ASPIB, the boards, or the adm nistration; they
sinply revealed that the state, its nmunicipalities,
and its school districts had been underpaying the
necessary contributions for health care to keep the
system heal t hy. Had nore accurate rates been inposed
earlier, the unfunded liability would not sit on the
books of the retirenment systens, it would be reflected
on the books of the municipalities, boroughs, and
school districts.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2005



| would like to offer the follow ng observations and
reconmendations for the |egislature to consider.

8:16: 33 AM

The major problem with our retirenent plans is health
care. In the 1980's and early 1990's health care was
relatively nore affordable than it is today. For the
el even-year period from 1992 to 2003, 69 % of the
increase in unfunded liabilities, amunting to roughly
$3.7 billion, canme from excess increases in health
care costs. | use the term “excess” to nmean that
health care costs were $3.7 billion nore than the plan
benchmark or estimate for that period. If it weren't
for that $3.7 billion deficit, we would not be here
today and there would be no discussion of overhauling
the retirenment system

The retirenment super tanker has developed several

| eaks. By |eaks, | nean benefits have been provided
that have not been funded or calculated into the
contribution rates. These |eaks nmandate paynents
greater than the plan ever intended. For exanpl e,

there is no correlation between the earnings and
contributions of part-tine local public officials and
the eventual benefits provided to those individuals.
Under current provisions, a school board nenber or
council menber earns and pays little into the system
but they receive free nedical coverage at 55 or 60.
Their contribution to the retirement system could be
as low as $1,000 over their entire career, yet they
could receive alnost unlimted nedical for them and
their dependents for up to a generation.

Addi tionally, many schenes have been used by enpl oyees
to boost eligible salaries in the final years of

enpl oynent . Consequently, salary rates are often
consi derably higher than they should be. Term nati on
bonuses have recently been identified in the press,
but service credits, overti e, final year pay
i ncr eases, etc. can produce large increases in
benefits wthout reasonable <contributions to the
system to offset them These practices create

unfunded liabilities.

One of the nobst overlooked |eaks in the super tanker
is masked in the benefit fornmula itself. Using the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2005



high three years for benefit calculation produces
built in losses for the system This piece of the
formula, which has been considered sacred until now,
consistently created an unfunded liability for every
single participant.

8:19:11 AM

Much has been spoken about reducing the risk to the
enpl oyers by noving to defined contribution plans.
Wiile the change to a defined contribution plan may
limt the exposure for local and state governnents

any plan that wundermines the retirenment security of
public enployees wll eventually drive good people
from public service. Retirenent plans, by their very
nature, are structured to protect enployees, not to
take advantage of them A bl ended approach that
gradually introduces the concept wll spread risk
equal |y anmong enpl oyers, the state, and enpl oyees.

8:19: 52 AM
Recommendat i ons:

| medi ate changes need to be made to the health plan
in order to nmaximze savings in every area possible

Aggressi ve steps should be taken to initiate preferred
provi der networks. Preferred prescription providers
and the use of generic drugs should becone nandatory
under the plan. I ncreasing co-paynents for drugs and
services would spread the cost of services anong
beneficiaries and the plan. Di sease managenent and
| arge case nmanagenent have been extrenely beneficial
in reducing unnecessary procedures and limting
hospital stays. | have personally admnistered a
| arge self-funded plan for our school district for the
past ten years. We have successfully inplenented all
of these procedures and realized considerable savings
from them The PERS/TRS Health Plan is |arge enough
to weld considerable influence in negotiating savings
Wi th service providers.

| mpl ement the changes in health care access that were
reconmended in the PERS & TRS Tier Proposals. These

included |imting entry into the system until
beneficiaries reach the age of 65 and assessing
prem uns based on years of service. Limting access

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 31, 2005



to health care for part tine elected officials would
al so help relieve the unfunded liability.

Stop the |eaks caused by unfunded benefits. Any
provision in the current statutes that drains fromthe
system should be identified and corrected. Make the

necessary changes to statutes that currently allow
suppl emental earnings to boost the wage base for
retirement cal cul ations.

Amend the fornula for retirement benefits to create a
nore reasonable base period for eligible salaries. A
m nimum of ten years of earnings should be used for

benefit cal culation purposes. This will dilute the
effects of any large payouts in the final years of
enployment and wll help insure that benefits nore

evenly match contributions.

Take a very conservative approach in inplenenting
el ements of a defined contribution plan. The division
of retirenment and benefits has offered PERS and TRS
Tier Proposals that incorporate a defined contribution
plan that is nore gradual. It provides significantly
nore protection for the state and the enployer w thout
totally abolishing the benefits of the current plan.
The plans are healthy in terns of their ability to pay
pensi on benefits. In spite of all of the bear market,
low interest rates, legislative changes, etc., the
pensi on portion of the plans were well funded and were
in the top ten percent of state retirenent systens as
neasured by one of the top pension experts, WIshire
Resear ch. The success of that portion of the plans
shoul d be preserved to the extent possible.

The plans have served the state and its residents well
for many years and can continue to do so in the
future. Rat her than dismantling the plan, we urge you
to consider a conbination of md-course corrections
and prospective changes.

W thank you for the opportunity to address these
issues. | would be happy to answer any questions from
the commttee.

8:23:39 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 31, 2005



CHAIR SEATON rem nded testifiers to address HB 191, which
establishes a defined contribution plan.

8:24: 45 AM

MR. JARRELL, in response to questions from Representative Gatto,
said the district he represents has 11 school board nenbers, and
there are 1,800 students spread over 15 villages, in an area of
approxi mately 80, 000 square m | es.

8:25: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that nany of the teachers in M.
Jarrell's district don't nmke big salaries. He asked if that
would be an indication of what M. Jarrell talked about

regardi ng people who contribute a snmall anobunt to the retirenent
system yet reap the health benefits. He asked, "Are you just
as qguilty as anyone could be of having 11 school board nenbers,
all of which qualify to take noney from the plan and yet fund
very little of it to the plan?"

8:25:05 AM

MR. JARRELL agreed that his school district certainly fits in
that category. He said, "As an observer and a representative of
the retirenent system if we're ever going to have a systemthat
keeps up - contributions keep up with benefits - that's an area
that will have to be corrected.”

8:26:21 AM

CHAI R SEATON said that nunicipalities and school districts are
finding that soneone getting paid $50 a nonth for being on a
school board or city council for 10 years not only has access to
the nedical benefits, but also has access to retirenent if that
person was a previous enployee of the borough or state, because
the liability accrues for the nunber of years that the person

wor ked. That person wll get the liability for their full
pensi on.

8:27:39 AM

MR. JARRELL said there are technical corrections that need to be
made. He suggested looking at 10 years or even the entire
nunber of years in a person's career, and to base the retirenent
benefit on the overall average of the earnings. He expl ai ned,

"That way the contribution to the system would bear a direct

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 31, 2005



correlation to the benefits that were eventually accrued by that
person."

8.28: 06 AM
CHAI R SEATON responded that he agrees with that, except:

W don't have the accrued paynents by the individual
enpl oyer's school district, versus how nuch you paid

but how many years of service. So, even if you did a
spread that woul d | ower the people's eventual
retirenment anmount, but there's a portion that is going
to be absorbed by the school district by having people

- basically volunteers - working on there and having
them have access to that, it's still going to be
proportionately much greater than their ... nonetary

contributions into the system
MR. JARRELL stated that he believes that's true.

CHAI R SEATON conti nued:

And | guess the ... question about how it relates to
[ HB] 191 is that if ... this was a defined
contribution program then that problem goes away,
right? Because whatever ... contribution they've
gotten from the school board, that's the liability
that the school board has to put forward. And

what ever contribution they've gotten from the state
enpl oynment or enploynent with the borough, that's that
portion. So, al | of a sudden we get this
proportionality, so that we're switching from how many
years you were active in an area to how nuch vyou
contributed to the systemfromthat enployer.

MR. JARDELL responded that's correct.
8:29: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said he has been speaking with "sonme of
the PERS/ TRS people that have been in our hallways the |ast

coupl e of days." He offered sone nanes. He said HB 191 "is
forced savings; ... it takes it up to a 10 percent ... savings
rate.” He asked what the effect would be on retention. He

nmentioned an article, in which Dr. Short, the superintendent for
the Fairbanks North Star Borough, indicated that she would | ose
200 teachers imediately, because they would not be able to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 31, 2005



"afford the higher savings rate that was put on them" He said,
"If you read this docunentation, a defined contribution plan is
going to end up with wealthier, better-off retirees 20-30 years
fromnow, and a lot of this just seens |ike fear of change."
8:31:48 AM

MR. JARRELL deferred to Dr. Solie.

8:.32:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS told Chair Seaton that he would like to
hear M. Jarrell's opinion.

8:32:42 AM

CHAI R SEATON said how nuch noney there is "at the end" would
depend on what the contribution rate is.

8. 32: 56 AM

MR. JARRELL said he thinks results wll depend upon the
know edge and investnent experience of each individual. He said
he thinks that to conpletely renove the defined benefit from
people will leave a nunber of them with no benefit whatsoever.
He noted that teachers, in particular, do not have social

security; they have no other benefits whatsoever. He said PERS
enpl oyees generally do, or have the Supplenental Benefits System
(SBS), which takes the place of social security. He said many
teachers are good at what they do but are not savvy when it
conmes to their own financial investnents. Wth a blended plan
there woul d be at |east sonme benefit.

8:34:10 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if M. Jarrell would approve of a plan in
which there was a requirenent that investnents such as SBS had
to be made.

8:34: 49 AM

MR. JARRELL reiterated that he would like to defer to Dr. Solie.
Notwi t hstanding that, he said if half of the contributions were
going into a defined contribution plan with a fixed rate of
return, then it would be acting the sane as a defined benefit
pl an and "shoul d take care of at |least a portion of that."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 31, 2005



8:35: 26 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that there is a committee substitute for HB
191.

8. 35:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Al aska State Legislature, testifying
as sponsor of HB 191, said the bill focuses only on a defined
contribution plan. He noted that another bill of his addresses

a change in the structure of the boards [HB 170], while yet
anot her would bring the 45,000 existing enployees to the paynent
table [HB 177]. None of the plans would change existing
benefits, "except for the new enpl oyees conmng into the door."

8:37: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 191, Version 24-LS0461\1, Craver, 3/30/05, as a work
draft. There being no objection, Version | was before the
committee.

8:.37:51 AM

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Mke Kelly, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented Version | on behalf of Representative
Kelly, sponsor. He indicated the changes nmade by Version |

8:39:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Hilyard to prepare a chart in
detail, citing by page and line the changes he just revi ewed.

MR. HI LYARD said he would do so.

8:40: 28 AM

CHAI R SEATON rem nded the committee that the followng bills are
rel at ed: HB 191, HB 170, HB 177, and HB 238. He said the
commttee should not be contrasting any of those bills wth
"what's happening in the other body."

8:.41:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS repeated his previous questions regarding
retention, the fear factor, and the rate increase.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 31, 2005



8:42: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY reiterated that the DC plan has nothing to
do with existing enpl oyees. He said it's inportant to renenber
that "there are ways to put sideboards so that fol ks that don't
have ... that special talent to invest" can "leave that in a
much nore conservative protected status.”

8:43: 43 AM
CHAI R SEATON asked:

So, Representative Kelly, in your bill you have the
board assigning a nunber of investnent nmanagers, such
as SBS. Is that correct? | mean, this isn't
individually the pure 401K, where you can go out and
then put all your noney in Enron stock or ... in Dell
or somepl ace el se. This is noney managers that have
been approved by the board, and you could select
certain noney nmanagers wth different risk
portfolios.

8:44: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY answered that's correct. Regarding fear of
new plans, he submtted that for the new person comng in the
door, the defined contribution plan "has every bit the ability"
to attract and retain that a defined benefit plan has.
Furthernore, for the younger enployee who is probably going to
change careers several tines in the 40-plus years they work, the
defined contribution plan is highly portable and "turns out to

be quite attractive to the younger set." He said, "That's that
unvested portion in the current DB plan; if they want to stay
there, they'll have that option. But if they want to transfer

across, then it's a sinple education program to show them the
conparative analysis of the two plans ...."

8:45: 15 AM

CHAIR SEATON referred to a summary included in the commttee
packet . He said the enployer contribution would eventually
reach 8 percent for TRS and 8.75 percent for PERS. The

contribution by enployees would be higher in TRS than in PERS
He asked why the plan was nade that way.

8:46: 31 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 31, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said "this" takes the two alternatives
formul ated by Mercer Human Resource Consulting and reflects sone
of the different retirenent options anong the classes of
enpl oyee. He offered his understanding that it would attenpt
"on TRS side" to at least partially address the social security
"opt out inpact.” He deferred further explanation to the
Division of Retirenent & Benefits.

8:47: 08 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that the nmedical portion of Version |I of HB
191 shows that 3.5 percent of the contribution would be for

medi cal , with anot her 1 percent for the health care
rei mbur senent pl an. He said he is trying to figure out "how
this works in the first several vyears.” He observed that,

regardi ng enployer contribution rates, 4.75 percent would be
dedi cated, but only between 0 and 2 percent is being taken from
the enployer in the first and second year, respectively. He
asked if that was intentional.

8:48: 11 AM
MR H LYARD said at this tinme that was intentional; it was |eft

at a graduated level wth the wunderstanding that it would
provi de no benefit in year one.

8:48: 39 AM
CHAI R SEATON asked, "So, the bill lays that out that there are
no contributions for nedical benefits. ... Is that for the

first four years or so?"

8:49:01 AM

MR. HLYARD clarified, "That graduation would apply to both
rat es: the 3.75 [percent] for the nedical and then the 4.25
[percent] ... in ... TRS.... So, you would essentially graduate
by increnments of 25 percent of the total."

CHAI R SEATON said he would flag that area for |ater work.

8:49:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY stated the intent was to encourage "soneone
to stay with us,” which is why it is graduated.

8:49: 28 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 31, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that police/fire enployees are able
to retire after 25 years, instead of 30; however, their
contribution rate is higher than that of the 30-year enployees.
He said he did not notice that there would be a difference in
the contribution rate for police/fire for enployers. He asked
if "this group of enployees”" would not "beconme nore expensive to
the system because of leaving it earlier wthout supplying as
much in contributions.

8:50:34 AM

MR. HI LYARD responded that the sponsor was essentially follow ng
the Mercer Human Resources Alternative 2 option. He said, "Wth
respect to adjustment, | think that is definitely sonething
that's open for discussion and anendnent. W were just trying
to use a baseline of a plan, so that we could bring sonething
forward to the conmttee.”

8:51:12 AM

CHAI R SEATON interpreted that new enployees in TRS, PERS, and
police/fire would all be retirenment eligible at 30 years. He
directed attention to page 2 of the summary, which shows that
under the nedical system a person would have to retirenent
directly fromthe systemwth 30 years of service, or be 65 with
at | east 10 years.

8:51: 57 AM

MR. H LYARD answered that's correct. He noted that |ines 15-28
on page 11 refer to TRS. He noted that there is a provision for
PERS and Public Safety enployees on page 39, lines 2-3, which
says that the nenber nust have at |east 25 years of service as a
peace officer or fire fighter and 30 years for all other
enpl oyees.

8:53: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY nentioned gap coverage provisions, by which
a person can get access to coverage before a certain age by
paying for it.

8:54: 30 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated his understanding that the nedical portion
of Version | had not been changed fromthe original bill

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 31, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE KELLY [off m crophone] said the nedical portion
has changed.

CHAI R SEATON noted that it is the sane as the tier committee
task force recommendati on

8:56: 33 AM

MELANIE M LLHORN, Director, D vision of Retirement & Benefits,
Departnment of Administration, stated that the nedical plan is

sanme for both Alternative 1 and Alternative 2. She indicated
that those alternatives set out the «criteria by which
individuals are able to receive nedical coverage. The tier

commttee specifically determned that an enployee had to retire
out of the system had to be age 60, and had to have 10 years of
service, or satisfy the requirenents through years of service
i nstead of age. The years of service for police/fire and TRS is
25 years, and 30 years for PERS.

8:58: 30 AM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,
stated the foll ow ng:

The two specific conponents within the nedical design
i nclude pre-65 and post-65. So, pre-65 includes a
defined dollar benefit for the nenbers. S I
based on years of service, so each year the division
woul d determ ne what the premum anount is for that
particular coverage, and then, based on years of
service, the nenber would receive a subsidy anount

associated with that. C Post-65 nedial coverage
coordinates wth Medicare. It's also derived by
| ooking at the years of service for the individual
and the individual wll pay a contribution anount
based on that premum anount established by the
system

9:00: 19 AM

M5. MLLHORN, in response to a followup question from Chair
Seaton, clarified that if a person has not been enployed 30
years [in PERS] he/she would have to be age 60 with 10 years of
servi ce. She said a person who is 65 and has worked 25 years
woul d receive a subsidy anount under the defined benefit plan
for nmedical coverage at 75 percent. In response to a question

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 31, 2005



from Chair Seaton, she said, "It's the premum that's set out
based on the clainms anount that year." In 2004, for exanple,
t he prem um was $5, 962.

9:02:41 AM
M5. MLLHORN, in response to Chair Seaton, explained as follows:

Wen we establish that premum anount, one other
conponent associated with the defined dollar benefit
portion - the pre-65 - is that there's a 5 percent
medi cal inflation factor that is considered every year
for that subsidy anount.

9: 03: 06 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if the premum can only grow at 5 percent a
year.

9:03: 25 AM

M5. M LLHORN answered that's correct. She confirnmed that that's
true no matter what the nedical costs are. In response to a
followup question from Chair Seaton, she indicated that the
menber woul d have a portion that he/she will have to absorb.
9:03:44 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked that M. MIllhorn give a Power Point
presentation on Saturday regarding the nedical aspects of a
defined contribution program

9:04:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. M Il horn if, during her upcom ng
presentation, she could offer sonme sanpl e scenari os.

9:05:49 AM

M5. M LLHORN said one inportant conponent that fits in with the
medical plan design is the health reinbursenent arrangenent,
which is designed to ensure that menbers have "those expenses
allowable for them to pay that additional cost" between the
defined benefit pre-65 portion and the defined health benefit
for post-65.

9: 06: 36 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 31, 2005



CHAIR SEATON asked that M. MIllhorn be prepared to nake
conpari sons between the nedical benefits in HB 191 and HB 238.

9:09: 09 AM

CHAI R SEATON, after considering Dr. Solie's schedule, said he
would allow himto talk about the other related House bills, but
asked himto specify whenever he changed focus.

9:10:11 AM

RICHARD SOLIE, SR, Ph.D., testifying as a nenber of the TRS
Board, noted that he is a retired professor of Econom cs, and
was al so the head of the departnment, as well as the acting dean
of the School of Managenent. He stated that he was appointed to
the TRS Board by Governor Frank Mirkowski in the sumrer of 2003,
and reappointed to a full term in January 2004. He was one of
the four nenbers on the tier commttee charged w th devel opi ng
proposals for a new retirenment plan for both TRS and PERS.

9:12: 33 AM

DR. SOLI E, regar di ng menber contri buti ons, stat ed hi s
understanding that there is difference in approach between HB
238 and HB 191. Dr. Solie naned two conponents: equal sharing
of normal costs, and equal sharing of past due liabilities. He
said both conponents are relevant to HB 191 and are "partially
relevant with respect to HB 238 ...." He stated that he
phi |l osophically agrees with the concept of equal sharing of the
normal costs. Both Alternatives 1 and 2 include enployee
contributions that would be as high or higher than those of the
enpl oyer. He said he would agree with doing that with existing
pl an nenbers "if it wll pass court nuster."

DR. SOLIE stated concern regarding the 5 percent a year
potential increase. He said, "If it were a sharing of normnal
costs, that really wouldn't conme into play, but if it were
sharing in the past ... unfunded liabilities, then it would.
And | have a real problem with that. I think you can inmagine
what a teacher or public enployee would feel like if they were
faced wth the kind of increases that were envisioned there
C He stated that it was the 5 percent issue, not the 10
per cent enpl oyee contribution under a proposed defined
contribution plan, to which previously nentioned Superintendent
Short in Fairbanks had responded.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 31, 2005



9:16: 06 AM

CHAI R SEATON told Dr. Solie that HB 238 would have a 13 percent
cap for PERS and a 14 percent cap for TRS. He asked if that
woul d solve the problemfor Dr. Solie.

9:16: 50 AM

DR. SOLIE responded that that solves a lot of the problem
however, he still has a phil osophical problem He nentioned the
percentages of "ranp up" for PERS and TRS to "cover the total
maxi mum" He said he thinks that it would be difficult to ranp

that up in one year. He enphasized that he is speaking both
personal ly and philosophically on the subject; he cannot speak
on behalf of TRS or PERS nenbers as a whole. He said he thinks
there is a fairness in the idea of sharing the nornmal cost.

9:17:41 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Dr. Solie what percentage of "ranp up" would
be acceptable to him

9:18: 12 AM

DR. SOLIE responded that he is reluctant to say, but |ess would
be better than nore. He continued:

| wouldn't have ... had a personal problemwth ... a
2.5 percent ranp up, but | suspect that there are a
nunber that were not in the position that | was, in
where it would have been a nmuch nore difficult thing.
| mean, | think just view it from the standpoint:
it's a federal tax. If you were told that your
federal tax was going to go up - no exenptions on it -
2.5 percent a year, or 5 percent, or whatever,
it's significant. And so, the slower the rate at
whi ch that could be phased in, the better it would be.

9:19: 17 AM
CHAI R SEATON said the commttee woul d consi der that issue.
9:19: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said saying one anount is "better than"
anot her breeds the question: "Better for [whom ?" He said any

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 31, 2005



time sonmething is better for one, it's got to be worse for
anot her.

9:20: 24 AM

DR. SOLIE responded that he thinks his previous remarks were
clearly from the standpoint of the enployee and the inpact on
the turnover. He continued:

But ny point was that the anobunt lost to the fund by a
slower ranp up is not going to be great. And |
personally think that the tradeoff between what the
fund would lose in a slower ranp up would be nore than
of fset by the | essened inpact on the enployee and the
turnover situation

9:21: 03 AM

DR. SOLIE, in response to Representative Guenberg, offered
further details regarding his positions at the university.

9:21:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that Dr. Solie was in a
position to observe the managenent and retention issue regarding
at least one part of the university. He stated that he doesn't
want to do anything that would inpede the university's ability
to attract the best faculty. He said he knows one issue that
attracts and keeps good people is the pension plan of the
uni versity system He asked Dr. Solie to evaluate which plan -
defined benefit or defined contribution - would attract and
retain the best.

9:23: 25 AM

DR. SOLIE opined that the current defined benefit plan "woul d be
the nost attractive." He said he thinks that for an individua
comng to Alaska for a shorter period of time with no intention
of staying long term a defined contribution plan would be
superior. He said that may apply to attracting teachers to the
Bush, because he said he suspects that a |lot of the teachers who
go out to the Bush don't do so with the idea of nmking that a
car eer.

9:24: 32 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 31, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he would Ilike to |limt his
guestion to the university system

9:24: 46 AM

DR SOLIE said - as it pertains to attracting younger faculty
menbers - that it is not overwhelmngly significant whether the
retirement plan is defined benefit, defined contribution, or a
hybri d. He noted that when he was involved with the university
there was a Suppl enental Benefits System (SBS). He opined that,
particularly wth younger enployees, salary 1is nuch nore

inportant than the benefit plan. |In response to a question from
Representative Guenberg, he said he thinks that is still true
t oday. He |listed some areas that are tough to recruit people

in: accounting, finance, economcs. He talked about initiating
a step plan in salary for those areas that were tough to recruit
for, which enabled the university to attract people to those
ar eas.

9:27: 23 AM

CHAI R SEATON rem nded Representati ve G uenberg t hat
representatives of the university had - during another hearing -
tal ked about the university's optional retirenment plan (ORP) - a
defined contribution plan, which a majority of eligible nenbers
have chosen

9:28:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that he was interested in
hearing Dr. Solie's perspective, because it is fromthe point of
view of a person who's nmade his career at one institution.

9:28: 33 AM

DR. SOLIE said he thinks retention is different issue; as
professors get older, the defined benefit plan takes on
significance. Furthernore, access to the health care plan
becones a critical issue in terns of retention.

CHAI R SEATON said it should be possible to get exact nunbers
from the wuniversity, regarding how many people are in PERS
versus how nany chose ORP.

9:29: 32 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 31, 2005



DR. SOLIE, regarding past unfunded liabilities - particularly
with respect to HB 191 - said, "That would share all of the way
up on the unfunded liability." He said that could potentially
nean as nuch as "25-32 percent sharing.” In response to a
remark by Chair Seaton, he confirnmed that he is talking about
the conbination of the normal <cost and the past unfunded
liability. He added that it's the past unfunded liability that

is "the really big part of it." He continued as foll ows:
There, | think that would be a very serious problem
fromtwo standpoints. Nunber one, just the anmount. |
nmean, that would be a potential killer. And that's

the issue upon which Superintendent Short in Fairbanks
said she would have these 190-sone teachers that would
wal k out the door the next day.

9:31:33 AM

CHAI R SEATON rem nded Dr. Solie that [HB 238] "doesn't take that
tack."

CHAIR SEATON said he thinks that part of the issue can be
dropped, because the House State Affairs Standing Committee is
fully aware that it can't be taking 25 percent of sonebody's
salary and putting it into their retirenment plan.

9:31:49 AM

DR. SOLIE suggested that a relevant point is the balance of the
unfunded liabilities that are attributable to current retirees
as conpared to "current actives." He said a question to Mercer
[ Human Resource Consulting] revealed that in TRS, "approxi mately
72 percent of the unfunded liabilities are attached to
nonactives; only about 28 percent are attached to actives." For
PERS, the nunbers are a little bit | ower: about 67 percent of
the unfunded liabilities are attached to nonacti ves. He stated
his point is that a vast mpjority of the unfunded liabilities
are attached to the current retirees "and nobody is talking
about sending them a bill for it.” He explained that the
exi sting enployees would be paying a major part of the bill for
those retired; they would be paying for sonething that is not
going to benefit themand in no way is attributable to them He
added that even anobng current active enployees there would be a
serious inbal ance, because the individual who is about to retire
has accrued a major part of that unfunded liability, whereas the
new enpl oyee who cones into the system has none. He said, "And

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 31, 2005



yet it's the new enployee ... who's going to pay that bill for
hi s whol e career.™

9:34: 14 AM

CHAI R SEATON said, "That's sone of the reason why we need a cap
that works into the realm of those contributing people in the
current tiers [who] would be |ooking at past service costs on
the benefits that they're going to receive." He noted for the
record: the increased contribution amunt is addressed in
Representative Kelly's HB 177; HB 191 addresses only the defined
contribution plan; and both el enents are addressed in HB 238.

9:34:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if Alaska would be a nodel for the
federal government to fix its own social security problem

9:35: 07 AM

DR. SOLIE replied that the federal governnent's problem is
si npl er. He explained that the projections indicate that once
the social security fund runs dry the benefits have to be paid
out of current contributions, and at that point in time the
contributions are estimated to pay for about 75 percent of the
benefits. Over time that will dip to approximtely 68 percent.
Even with that significant reduction, the system is capable, on
the basis of current inconme, of providing the bulk of the
benefits. Conversely, if Alaska doesn't cover it's costs, TRS
will be broke in about 25 years and the current contributions
woul d be a nmuch smaller fraction of the benefit. He offered his
under standi ng that, regarding social security, about a 2 percent
increase in the social security tax would fix the problem He
added, "Al'so, lifting the maxi mum would go part of the way."

9:36:54 AM

CHAI R SEATON said that with social security "it's all unfunded
liability." He explained, "Present dollars are paying the
present." Alaska is attenpting to collect enough noney so that
it will grow over tinme to pay the benefits that are "related to
t hat enpl oyee. ™

9:37:36 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 31, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked if Dr. Solie is concerned about
rushing a solution, and whether he thinks the |egislature should
find a solution this year, or reflect to next January.

9:38: 20 AM

DR. SOLIE stated that he's heard it said that anyone who
recommends delaying the solution doesn't understand the
seriousness of the problem but he said he doesn't agree wth
t hat . He said he thinks this is a serious issue. Once the
| egi slature establishes a new tier, based on the way that the
suprene court has ruled in the past, those benefits are
basically set in concrete. He stated that it would behoove the
| egislature to get it right the first tinme. He said he thinks
the tier coonmttee cane up with sonme good ideas, but he is not
prepared to say that it was the best plan. He said there are
things being proposed that need serious consideration and the
cost of delaying one year would cause mnimal effect.

DR. SOLIE noted that actuarial projections show that if the
| egi sl ature, as of July 1, [2005], was to elimnate the benefit

pl ans conpletely for all new enployees, it would still be 10
years before the PERS rate would drop to 25 percent and the TRS
rate would still be 30 percent at that point. He said, "The new
plan is only going to bring that down gradually.” He said there
are things that can be done within the current plan that don't
require action by the legislature. For exanpl e, t he

adm nistration can nake changes to the health care plan, which
is where he said the biggest problemis.

9:40: 40 AM

DR, SOLIE said he has spoken with [San] Trivette of [the Retired
Publ ic Enpl oyees of Alaska (RPEA)] and found him to be open to
addressing sone of the issues and to work cooperatively with the
state.

9:41: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated <concern that the |egislature
doesn't have bankers and econonmists to explain what it means to
solve a problemlike this.

9:41: 53 AM

DR. SOLIE said his witten testinony shows that he agrees wth
the concept of increased professionalism on the boards and with

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 31, 2005



the concept of bringing in sone outside nenbers who are not
menbers of [either] system He clarified that that does not
nmean that he doesn't have the greatest of respect for the
current nmenbers of the board. He added, "But | do think that,
with sone of the issues that we grapple with, sone expertise in
the areas spelled out in sone of the bills would be a positive,
and bringing in the public perspective wuld be a positive."
Regarding HB 170 - the reconposition of the boards - he stated
concern that there be guaranteed seats on the board [for] people
"representing those plans.” He explained that it is trust funds
put in trust for [PERS/ TRS nenbers] that the board manages, and
| arge sunms of nobney have been put into those funds by [PERS/ TRS
menbers] for the purpose of providing for their retirenment plan.
He stated that he thinks it is absolutely essential that [those
nmenbers] be represented on the boards and "should have the
majority.”

9:44:15 AM

CHAIR SEATON offered his wunderstanding that the PERS board
menbers are currently selected through an el ection process which

costs approxi mately $80, 000. He asked how TRS selects its
menbers.
DR SOLIE said, "I think there is a ... provision where there

can be nom nations from enpl oyee groups, but the governor makes
t he appoi ntnent. "

9:45: 37 AM

DR. SOLIE, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, noted
that the board is conprised of people who are either current
retirees or "current actives." He said there is no "guarantee
of access" for the TRS Board. He stated that although that has
wor ked well, he sees energing fromthe bills being discussed an
enphasis on professionalism and outside experience. He said
that makes him fear that "it mght shift away and it would | ose
sight of the need to have representation from this group.” In
response to a followup question from Chair Seaton, Dr. Solie
st at ed:

Frankly, the appointnment process doesn't bother ne,
even if it weren't a nomnation, as long as there were
sone dedicated seats. And |I'm sure that the | abor
organi zati ons woul d have a different view of that than
l.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 31, 2005



9:46: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked Dr. Solie if he has given
recommendations to the admnistration and if it has shown any
indication that it mght be wlling to inplenent those
regul ati ons.

9:47:10 AM

DR. SOLIE answered yes. He qualified that he can only speak in
a limted fashion regarding that, because he has only been on
board for 1.5 years, and he was not a nenber of the health
commttee, which has been primarily responsible for "forwarding

some of those recomendations.” However, he said he knows in
the past that "they dealt significantly with the issue of
increasing ... the generic drug participation.” During that

tinme, as a result of an educational program that was
i npl enented, Dr. Solie said he thinks there was an increase of
at least 5 percentage points in the percentage of generic drug
usage. He noted that each percentage point saves about $1
mllion.

DR. SCLIE reported that there were about 8 issues that were
forwarded in the nost recent board neeting and the
adm ni stration seemed open to a request to give a report on the
progress of those issues at the next PERS/ TRS neeti ng. He said
HB 238 - a closed fornulary issue - was one of the
reconmendat i ons. There are others that could be cost saving.
He said he heard that 80 percent of hospital care in Anchorage
is provided by Providence Hospital, and yet that hospital is not
a preferred provider. He indicated that if it were, the savings
coul d equal 20-30 percent. He concluded, "So, | think there are
things that can be done that w Il engender significant savings
out of the current program w thout the need for change.™

9:50:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he understands and appreciates what
Dr. Solie is saying. He thanked himfor being well spoken

9:50: 50 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he finds the testinony of Dr.
Solie helpful and he encouraged letting Dr. Solie continue his

testimony by tel econference in the future.

9:51: 29 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 31, 2005



DR. SOLIE, in response to a question from Representative Gatto,
stated his understanding that there would be one hospital in
Anchorage, for exanple, that would be naned as the preferred
provider, and if anyone who went to another hospital, hel/she
woul d pay the additional cost.

9:51: 57 AM

DR. SOLIE stated that he is not opposed to the concept of a
defined contribution plan. He asked the conmittee to recall
that the Alternative | proposal advanced by the tier proposal
committee was a hybrid of a defined contribution and defined
benefit plan. He said the [tier proposal] conmmttee voted
unani nously against the Alternative |1l plan. One of the basic

reasons for the conmttee's choice, he explained, was that
"there was a recognition that many of the enployees in the State
of Al aska and none of the teachers within the system are covered
by social security; thus they don't have the basic floor

that social security provides."” He said the commttee felt
strongly that there was a need for a floor, which is why it
proposed "the 1 percent [defined benefit plan]."

DR, SOLIE stated that surveys conducted showed that enployers
were in favor of reducing costs and sharing the risk. They did
not indicate that they wanted to shift the whole risk to the
enpl oyees, nor did they want the enployees to bear a
tremendously | arge additional increase.

9:53:46 AM

CHAIR SEATON responded that he has had "a very different
conversation with the enployers.” He said their main concern
was not reducing costs from the current normal cost rate, but
was in regard to a huge escal ation of costs. He stated that if
the legislature decides on a defined contribution plan it 1is
critical to figure out whether to drop below the contribution
rate that enployers have been paying for the last 20 years or to
focus on not junping the rate up.

9. 55:32 AM
DR. SCOLI E responded as foll ows:
Nunmber one, we had no control over the past service

unfunded liability. That's an issue that was separate
that we couldn't do anything about, frankly. Al we

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 31, 2005



could deal with is the cost of enployees entering a

new tier, other than these other factors that |['ve
menti oned of potential savings mainly in the medical
si de. But the plan that we proposed would have

reduced the enployer contribution to 8.75 percent for
TRS and to 8 percent for PERS. It would have had the
enpl oyee contribution at 10 percent for TRS and at 8
percent for PERS.

9:56: 22 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if, know ng the past service costs were going
to increase, reducing the nornmal service cost was the only thing
that could be controlled.

9: 56: 36 AM

DR. SOLIE answered that's right. He said, "W were focusing on
reduci ng the normal cost on the part of the plan that we felt we
had some authority to affect.”

9:56: 45 AM

CHAI R SEATON surm sed that the driving force for that was that
"the total contribution rate was going to be so high that you
were trying to reduce it wherever you could, and that's where
you thought you could."”

9:57: 00 AM

DR. SOLIE indicated that is partly the reason. He stated, "I
also feel that ... there are going to need to be sone
adjustnments in retirement plans, and ours is anplified by that
huge unfunded liability."

9:57.:50 AM

CHAIR SEATON drew attention to a draft sectional analysis
conpiled by his staff [included in the conmttee packet].

9:58: 07 AM
DR, SOLIE, in regard to HB 238, stated the foll ow ng:

As | calculate it, wunder HB 238, the enployer
share of the normal cost would be 11 percent; our

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 31, 2005



proposal was 8.75 [percent]. ... For the PERS side,
the enployer contribution would be 10 [percent]; our
proposal was 8 [percent]. Now, the fact of the matter
is, it's going to take at Ileast that amount of
i ncreased contribution on the part of the enployers -
or at |east a conbination of enployers and enpl oyees -
to provide a [defined benefit] plan that wll give
coverage that is at all conparable to what the current
defined benefit or to what our blended plan would

provi de. And | say that because there is, | think
pretty well established information in the literature
showing that, typically, individually nanaged plans

earn rates of return that are significantly bel ow
those of the pool funds. And the figure that is nost
comonl y bandi ed about is about 2 percent. | ran sone
nunbers using a 1.5 percent reduced rate.

9:59:43 AM
CHAIR SEATON added that, in relation to that, the only
selections are those that are available from the board. He

said, "So, it's |like SBS."

9:59:49 AM

DR. SOLIE said he understands that. He added, "But

nevertheless, wthin that wuld be selections which would
include fixed inconme versus equities, and probably sone
international funds, and so on. And in the selection anong
those, the general result is that the enployee-nmanaged funds
earn |less.” He enphasized that those results are based on the
figures he had available. He nentioned a nodel that he said he
would share with Chair Seaton's staff. He offered further
details on his nodel as it relates to nales. He said he assuned
in his exanple that the individual would buy an annuity, which
woul d be indexed for inflation the sanme way as the current plan

iS. He noted that the nunbers would be different for fenuales
because of their longer |ife expectancy. He offered further
details. He enphasized that females would be penalized

significantly by a defined contribution plan conpared to nal es.

10: 02: 29 AM

CHAI R SEATON pointed out that in HB 238, there would be 10
percent each from enpl oyer and enpl oyee for PERS, and 11 percent

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 31, 2005



each from enpl oyer and enployee for TRS. He indicated that that
doesn't include the nedical calcul ation

10: 03: 06 AM

DR. SCOLIE explained that he was just "pulling out the portions
that would have been dedicated to the [defined contribution]
pl an,"” because the [tier proposal committee's] proposal included
a nedical plan init. He stated that the commttee had proposed
a health care plan with an 8.75 percent contribution for TRS and
8 percent for PERS. Additionally, as M. MIIlhorn described,
the enployer subsidy was designed to begin at the nornal
retirement of age 60. He said, "I nmay have missed it, but I
qui ckly went through [HB 191], and | couldn't see it comng in
until age 65. So, that's a concern.™

10: 04: 28 AM

CHAI R SEATON stated that there is quite a difference between HB
191 and HB 238, because the latter does [set the retirenent age]
at 60.

10: 04: 37 AM

DR. SOLIE, regarding the provision of not giving any premum
support wuntil age 65 in HB 191, said there is "a simlar
arrangenment on the Senate side.” He said he spoke with Mles
Baker, [Staff to Senator Bert Stedman]. He indicated that [a
hi gher retirenment age] "reduced the normal cost of the health
care plan from 3.75 [percent] to 1 percent.” In terns of what

is proposed in HB 238, he offered his wunderstanding that the
bill would give premium support at age 60. He added:

But we had a nuch nore conservative approach to that

such as described by ... [Ms. MIIhorn]. | think
it was sufficiently conplex that it didn't cone
through. And | have to apologize for that, because it
was ny idea to do it. But, as was described, in the
60-65 period the enployer was paying a percentage of
this fixed initial anount, which would be inflated by
the increase in health care costs, up to a nmaxi num of

5 percent per year. But the premium is going to be
inflated by the health care cost. So, in effect, in
the 60-65, what we were saying is they start out
equally, but the ... health care responsibility - of
whi ch the enpl oyer pays a percentage - would rise at 5
percent per year. The actual health care costs are

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- March 31, 2005



going up faster. And so, the enployer is only paying
a percentage of this part [enphasis on "this"]; the
enpl oyee pays all of the additional balance of this
part. So, the enployee bears the full risk in the 60-
65 period of above average health care increases.
Whereas in the 65-and-on period then it's as you have
defined it. So, what you have got in the 60-65 is
really a significantly nore expensive plan than what

we proposed, and frankly, | would recommend going to
an approach such as ours. Because ... 60-65, ... the
pre-Medicare eligible age, ... is the one that is
really killing the system that's the really expensive
part. So, | would suggest that you |look at that and
go back to what | call a [defined benefit] type of
health care plan participation in the 60-65 period. I
think that will save noney in the long run.

CHAI R SEATON said he hopes the adm nistration wll cone forward
at the next neeting with a nedical presentation, in which the
issues Dr. Solie nmentioned could be included.

10: 07:16 AM

DR. SOLIE, regarding normal retirement age, said the idea of
changing the retirenent age as each nortality table is rel eased

could cause sone confusion. He said the table could increase
that age every year. Additionally, there has been a long-term
trend of |ife expectancies increasing close to 2.5 years every

decade, thus, in tw decades, the nornmal retirenent age woul d be
up to the Medicare eligibility, unless the latter was raised.
He suggested the l|egislature adjust the retirenent age no nore
than every five years and cap the normal retirenent at whatever
Medicare eligibility age is.

10: 09: 13 AM

CHAI R SEATON indicated that, in [HB 238], the defined age of 65
was taken out and Medicare eligibility was inserted.

10: 09: 25 AM

DR. SOLIE noted that the tier proposal conmmttee's plan would
use Medicare weligibility, because "we were aware of that
possibility in the future.™

10: 09: 41 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 31, 2005



DR. SOLIE nade one final coment on HB 191 and the build up of
contributions rates in the first five years. He also stated his
understanding that HB 238 "has vesting over the period.” He
said he thinks the approach in HB 238 is far superior; it gives
an incentive for the shorter-term enployees to stay. He offered
further details.

10:10: 41 AM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN asked that Dr. Solie be available by
tel econference in the future.

[HB 191 was heard and hel d. ]

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
10:11: 02 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- March 31, 2005



